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December 20, 2013 

 

To the Board of Directors of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

(RVCOG), and the Citizens of Jackson and Josephine Counties. 

 

Oregon state law requires that all local governments publish within six months of 

the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in 

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and audited in 

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed 

certified public accountants who are also certified by the State of Oregon as 

municipal auditors.  Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue RVCOG’s 

comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

 

This report consists of management’s representations concerning RVCOG’s 

finances.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the 

completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report.  To 

provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, RVCOG’s 

management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 

designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to 

compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of RVCOG’s financial 

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  Because 

the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, RVCOG’s 

comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide 

reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free 

from material misstatement.  As management, we assert that, to the best of our 

knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 

respects. 

 

RVCOG’s financial statements have been audited by Isler Medford, LLC, a firm 

of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to 

provide reasonable assurance that RVCOG’s financial statements for the fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2013, are free of material misstatement.  The independent 

audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used 

and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall 

financial statement presentation. 

 

 

 

The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for 

rendering an unqualified opinion that RVCOG’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
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June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s report 

is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

 

The independent audit of RVCOG’s financial statements was part of a broader, federally 

mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies.  The 

standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 

on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal 

controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and 

legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards.  These reports are available in 

RVCOG’s Single Audit Report, which is included in this report following the statistical section. 

 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 

accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

(MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in 

conjunction with it.  RVCOG’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 

independent auditors. 

 

Profile of the Government 
 

RVCOG, established through an intergovernmental agreement among its several members on 

September 30, 1968, is located in the southwestern portion of the state and includes Jackson and 

Josephine counties.  Membership in RVCOG comprises the two counties, all incorporated 

municipalities within the region, two colleges, and a number of special districts.   

 

RVCOG operates under the direction of a Board of Directors composed of one member 

representing, and appointed by, the governing body of each member.  Policy-making and 

organizational oversight are vested in the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors is 

responsible, among other things, for adopting the budget, setting policy, and hiring the Executive 

Director.  The Executive Director is responsible for carrying out the policies of the Board of 

Directors, for overseeing RVCOG’s day-to-day operations, and for appointing the heads of the 

various departments. 

 

RVCOG provides a range of diverse services, both to the public and to the member jurisdictions.  

The services provided include (but are not limited to): 1) functioning as the designated Area 

Agency on Aging for Jackson and Josephine counties, providing services to seniors and persons 

with disabilities, including operations of the senior meals program; 2) functioning as the 

designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Middle Rogue and Rogue Valley 

MPOs; 3) providing both transportation planning and land-use planning services to member 

jurisdictions; 4) assisting member jurisdictions with public outreach, strategic planning, project 

management, project development, and acquiring project funding; and, 5) providing water 

management services to member jurisdictions, including water quality monitoring and analysis, 

storm-water planning and program management, wetland planning, watershed planning, and 

environmental education. 

 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for RVCOG’s financial planning and control.  All 

RVCOG’s departments are required to submit a proposed budget to the Executive Director 



 5 

during the spring of each year.  All departmental budgets included in the special revenue fund 

must be submitted with the funding for each project identified.  The level of funding available to 

the general fund is determined based on the federally approved indirect rate being applied to 

applicable costs in the special revenue fund budget.  In May of each year the Executive Director 

submits a proposed budget to the Budget Committee.  This committee comprises three members 

of the Board of Directors and an equal number of interested citizens appointed by the Board.  

The Budget Committee reviews the budget as submitted, and holds a public meeting for the 

purpose of discussing the budget with various department managers and to receive citizen 

comments.  The Budget Committee approves the budget, after making any changes that the 

members deem necessary, and recommends it to the Board of Directors.  The Board can then 

make adjustments to the recommended budget, but are limited to no more than a 10 percent 

increase in each fund.  The Board of Directors adopts the budget and sets the appropriations by 

resolution prior to July 1.  The appropriated budget is prepared by fund with the exception of the 

special revenue fund which is at the department level.  The Executive Director and department 

heads can make transfers of appropriations within the department, although any increase in the 

budget requires special approval of the Board of Directors following a public hearing.  Budget-

to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for 

which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.  This comparison is included as part of 

the basic financial statements for the governmental funds, with the general fund being presented 

on page 32, and special revenue fund on page 33. 

 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 

considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which RVCOG 

operates. To best put RVCOG’s operating environment into perspective the reader should 

appreciate the fact that RVCOG’s existence is dependent on others, mostly units of general 

government, to finance its activities.  Although variable from year to year, approximately 95 

percent of the resources available to the Council are derived from grants and contracts with 

either federal,  state, or local governmental entities.  While the overall RVCOG budget has been 

fairly stable for the last decade, between $6 and $7 million, the distribution of revenue between 

departments and between projects within departments can vary, sometime significantly, 

depending on federal, state, and local changes in funding availability and programmatic 

priorities.  

 

Local economy.  For RVCOG, “local” includes both Jackson and Josephine counties.  Until 

fairly recently the economics of both counties was dominated by, and dependent on, the timber 

industry, with the service industry, agriculture, manufacturing, and tourism coming in far behind.  

With the significant reductions in the timber industry over the past two decades, a major shift has 

occurred in the economics of the two-county region.  While many smaller businesses have 

moved into the area because of its quality of life, no major industries have replaced the timber 

industry, although health care and tourism have become a more significant part of the economy.  

In addition, continued population growth has increased the demand for services.  Since 2010 the 

region has continued to grow, but at a significantly lower rate than previously.  Between 2000 

and 2010 the regional population grew by 28,924 (11.25%), with the populations of Jackson and 

Josephine counties growing by 21,937 (12.10%) and 6,987 (9.23%) respectively.  During the last 
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three years Jackson County grew by 01.71% and Josephine County by 0.13% for a regional total 

of 01.25%. 

 

On the negative side of the economic picture, the region remains one of the most depressed in 

Oregon and the nation.  In Jackson County the median household income is 6.4 percent below 

the state median household income and 6.2 percent below the national level, while Josephine 

County ranks 26.5 percent below the state level and 20.4 percent below the national level.  In 

addition, based on the 2010 U.S. Census, 14.9 percent of Jackson County families, and over 11 

percent in Josephine County, rank below the national poverty level.  Finally, at the end of fiscal 

year 2012 the unemployment rates were 11.8 percent for Jackson County and 12.7 percent for 

Josephine County. 

 

Long-term financial planning.  As stated earlier, RVCOG depends almost wholly on grants and 

contracts for its existence.  While this makes long-range planning uncertain, for practical 

purposes RVCOG makes the assumption that there will be sufficient funding through grants and 

contracts to maintain the operations of the organization at or near its current level. The viability 

of this practice is supported by almost five decades of continued operation – even though the 

organization has seen major shifts in programs during that time period, RVCOG has remained a 

viable organization.  Over the long term, it is RVCOG’s primary financial goal to maintain a 

positive fund balance in the general fund, while eliminating the historic deficit fund balance in 

the special revenue fund. 

 

Financial policies. RVCOG is primarily funded through grants and contract from other 

governments and some non-governmental entities. Because of the fact that it is the policy of 

RVCOG that grants and contracts must be fully funded, with no dependence on other RVCOG 

resources.  Because RVCOG, as a council of governments, is required to operate on a strict 

reimbursement basis for actual costs while adhering to often inflexible predetermined project 

budgets, occasionally the actual costs of completing a specific project turns out to be in excess of 

the resources provided from the grant or contract.  Such project deficits, when they occur, can 

result in a negative change in fund balance for the effected year.  

 

Cash management policies and practices.  Cash management for RVCOG does not include, 

for the most part, an investment strategy, as RVCOG rarely has any available cash to invest.  As 

mentioned above, the majority of the grants and contracts that RVCOG enters into are on an 

expense reimbursement basis, which requires that cash management is predominantly an exercise 

in balancing the reimbursements received with the need to meet current obligations. 

 

Risk management.  RVCOG maintains commercial insurance policies to meet all potential 

losses. 

 

Pension and other post-employment benefits.  The Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

provides a 401(a) defined contribution pension plan for its regular employees. It also offers a 457 

deferred compensation plan funded solely with individual employee contributions. 
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The only post-employment benefit provided to retirees by the Rogue Valley Council of 

Governments is the opportunity to remain enrolled in the health and dental insurance programs 

through a COBRA arrangement wherein the retiree pays their own premiums. 

 

Additional information on the Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ pension arrangements and 

post-employment benefits can be found in Note 5.C and 5.D respectively, in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

 

Awards and Acknowledgments 

 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 

awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Rogue Valley 

Council of Governments for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 2012.  This is the sixteenth consecutive year that RVCOG has achieved this 

prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must 

publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.  This 

report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 

requirements.   

 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe our current 

comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 

Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for 

continued recognition. 

 

We would like to express our appreciation to all members of the administration department who 

assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report, without whose dedicated service, the 

preparation of this report would not have been possible.  Credit also must be given to the Board 

of Directors for its unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in 

the oversight of RVCOG’s finances. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

______________________________ 

Michael Cavallaro 

Executive Director 

 

______________________________ 
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Board of Directors 

 

Executive Committee 
President - Jim Lewis .........................................................................................City of Jacksonville 

1
st
 Vice-President - Kay Harrison .......................................... Rogue Valley Sewer Services (RVS) 

2
nd

 Vice-President - Dick Gordon ........................................................................... City of Medford 

E. J. McManus ............................................................................................................ City of Talent 

Margie Moulin ..................................... Emergency Communications of Southern Oregon (ECSO) 

 

Board Members 
 

Doug Breidenthal ..................................................................................................... Jackson County 

Cherryl Walker...................................................................................................... Josephine County 

Michael Morris......................................................................................................... City of Ashland 

Fred Phillips ...................................................................................................... Town of Butte Falls 

Carl Jacobson, Jr. ............................................................................................City of Cave Junction 

Rick Samuelson ............................................................................................... City of Central Point 

Bob Russell ......................................................................................................... City of Eagle Point 

Jan Fish .................................................................................................................. City of Gold Hill 

Vacant .................................................................................................................City of Grants Pass 

Ron Fox ................................. Southern Oregon Regional Economic Development, Inc. (SOREDI) 

Jeff Bellah ................................................................................................................ City of Phoenix 

Pam VanArsdale ............................................................................................... City of Rogue River 

Ron Holthusen ................................................................................................... City of Shady Cove 

Randy White .............................................. Jackson Soil & Water Conservation District (JSWCD) 

Mary O’Kief............................................................................... Rogue Community College (RCC) 

Bill Mansfield ......................................................... Rogue Valley Transportation District (RVTD) 

Mary Cullinan ...........................................................................Southern Oregon University (SOU) 

All Board members receive mail at the Administrative Office. 

  

Management Staff 
 

Michael Cavallaro ............................................................................................... Executive Director 

Dave Toler .......................................................................... Senior and Disability Services Director 

Jonathan David..................................... Planning and Community Development Program Manager 

Michael Cavallaro .................................................................... Water Resources Program Manager 

Sandi Morton .................................................................................. Assistant to Executive Director 

V. Alan Hudson ..................................................................................................... Finance Manager 
 

Administrative Office 
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st
 Street, P.O. Box 3275, Central Point, Oregon 97502 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

As management of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments, we offer readers of RVCOG’s 

financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Rogue 

Valley Council of Governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  We encourage readers 

to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we 

have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 3 through 7 of this 

report. 

 

Financial Highlights 
 

The assets of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments exceeded its liabilities at the close 

of the most recent fiscal year by $717,081 (Net Position).  Of this amount, $128,601 

(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet RVCOG’s ongoing obligations to citizens 

and creditors. 

 

RVCOG’s total net position decreased by $88,340.  Of this decrease, $40,051 is related to 

total expenditures in excess of revenues in the governmental funds. 

 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, RVCOG’s governmental funds reported combined 

ending fund balances of $280,987, a net decrease of $40,051 from the prior year.  

 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was 

$286,483 or 55.4 percent of total general fund expenditures. 

 

RVCOG’s total liabilities decreased by $71,977 (7.6 percent) during the current fiscal year.  

The key factor in this change was related to a $23,431 decrease in long-term liabilities.     

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to RVCOG’s basic financial 

statements.  RVCOG’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-

wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 

statements themselves. 

 

Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 

designed to provide readers with a broad overview of RVCOG’s finances, in a manner similar to 

a private-sector business. 

 

The statement of net position presents information on all of RVCOG’s assets and liabilities, with 

the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 

position may serve as a useful indicator of whether RVCOG’s financial position is improving or 

deteriorating. 
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position 

changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as 

the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 

flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 

result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Rogue Valley 

Council of Governments that are principally supported by intergovernmental revenues 

(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 

portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  As discussed 

previously, RVCOG’s governmental activities include general government, health and welfare, 

natural resources and conservation, and planning. 

 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 31 of this report. 

 

Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 

control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  RVCOG, 

like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 

compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of RVCOG’s funds can be divided into 

two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

 

Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, 

unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 

on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 

resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a 

government’s near-term financing requirements. 

 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 

financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 

statement of revenues, and changes in fund equity provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 

comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

 

RVCOG maintains two individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in 

the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, and 

changes in fund equity for the general and the special revenue fund, both of which are considered 

to be major funds. 

 

RVCOG adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its funds.  A budgetary comparison 

statement has been provided for each of the governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with 

this budget. 
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The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 through 33 of this 

report. 

 

Proprietary funds. RVCOG maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Internal service funds are 

an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the organization’s 

various functions.  RVCOG uses internal service funds to account for its building operations, 

leave liability, vehicles, information systems, and other management functions that can be 

allocated to other functions.  Because all of these services predominantly benefit governmental 

rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in 

the government-wide financial statements. 

 

All of the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the 

proprietary fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for the internal service funds is 

provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 34 through 36 of this 

report. 

 

Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 

a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 37 through 51 of this report. 

 

Other information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with internal 

service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.  

Combining statements and schedules can be found on pages 55 through 61 of this report. 

 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 

financial position.  In the case of RVCOG, assets exceed liabilities by $717,081 at the close of 

the most recent fiscal year.  The majority of RVCOG’s net position reflects its investment in 

capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to 

acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  RVCOG uses these assets to provide services to 

member jurisdictions; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although 

RVCOG’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that 

the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 

assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, RVCOG is able to report a positive balance in net position 

for the government as a whole.  Separately, the internal service funds report positive balances in 

both the investment in capital assets and unrestricted categories of net position, while the 

governmental funds report a positive balance in the capital assets category. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ Net Position 

 

Governmental activities 

 

2013 2012 Change 

Current and other assets $    869,403  $    996,786  $   (127,383) 

Capital assets     794,390      827,324       (32,934) 

          Total assets $ 1,663,793  $ 1,824,110  $   (160,317) 

    Long-term liabilities outstanding $    312,676  $    326,872  $    (14,196) 

Other liabilities     634,036      691,817      (57,781) 

          Total liabilities $    946,712  $ 1,018,689  $    (71,977) 

    Net Position: 

        Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $    588,480  $    593,983  $    (5,503) 

     Unrestricted     128,601      211,438    (82,837) 

          Total Net Position $    717,081  $    805,421  $  (88,340) 

     

RVCOG’s Net Position decreased by $88,340 during the current fiscal year.  RVCOG’s net 

position in the governmental funds and internal service funds are consolidated in the 

government-wide statement of net position; the $88,340 is the result of this consolidation. 

 

Governmental activities.  Governmental activities accounted for the entire decrease in RVCOG’s 

net position since all activities are governmental.  Key elements of this decrease are as follows: 

 

1. The general fund’s fund balance decreased by $23,745 as a result of expenses 

exceeding revenues.  The general fund is funded by two primary sources, member dues 

and indirect charges, which are charged to the programs in the special revenue fund.  

Member dues were exactly as anticipated.  The indirect charges are based on an annual 

rate that is determined during the budget process using the general fund budgeted 

expenditures, less member dues and other miscellaneous revenues, divided by the 

applicable special revenue fund expenditures.  When the actual expenses of the special 

revenue fund falls below the level that was anticipated the result to the general fund is a 

decrease in indirect revenues.  This was the case during the current fiscal year.   

 

2. The net position of the special revenue fund decreased by $16,308 as a result of total 

net revenues in the various programs, when taken as a whole being lower than the total 

overall expenditures.  The majority of both grants and contracts only reimburse actual 

expenditures up to a total amount, however a small number of programs are able to 

collected revenues, from local sources, in excess of the amounts expended on those 

projects, thus while in some projects expenditures may exceed the available resources, 

other projects can generate extra revenue which can be used as an offset.  This year the 

projects that had expenditures in excess of available resources, exceeded those with 

excess revenues. 

 

3. The net position of the internal service funds decreased by $48,289.  As with the 

indirect charges, the charges for the internal service funds are based on an annual rate that 

is determined during the budget process using the general and special revenue funds 
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budgeted expenditures.  When the actual expenses of these funds exceed the level that 

was anticipated the result to the internal service funds is a decrease in revenues.  Any 

significant increase in the net position of the internal service funds are used in the 

following year to reduce the rates charged to the general and special revenue funds.  

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Changes in Net Position 

 

Governmental activities 

 

2013 2012 Change 

Revenues: 

   Program revenues: 

        Charges for services  $         80,782   $         36,956   $         43,826  

     Operating grants and contributions        4,336,362         4,594,937           (258,575) 

General revenues: 

        Other revenues           125,185            250,264           (125,079) 

          Total revenues  $    4,542,329   $    4,882,157   $      (339,828) 

    Expenses: 

        General government  $    1,256,806   $    1,147,400   $       109,406  

     Health and welfare        2,599,492         2,576,141              23,351  

     Natural resources and conservation           222,968            451,653           (228,685) 

     Planning           536,925            734,150           (197,225) 

     Interest on long-term debt             14,478              11,434                3,044  

          Total expenses  $    4,630,669   $    4,920,778   $      (290,109) 

    (Decrease) Increase in Net Position  $        (88,340)  $        (38,621)  $        (49,719) 

Net Position 7/1           805,421            844,042             (38,621) 

Net Position 6/30  $       717,081   $       805,421   $        (88,340) 
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
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Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 

As noted earlier, RVCOG uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 

finance-related legal requirements. 

 

Governmental funds.  The focus of RVCOG’s governmental funds is to provide information on 

near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in 

assessing RVCOG’s financing requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve 

as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 

fiscal year. 

 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ 

governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of ($ 280,987), a decrease of 

$40,051 in comparison with the prior year.  Of this amount $286,483 constitutes unreserved fund 

balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion.  All of the remainder of 

the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has 

already been committed to liquidate contracts of the prior period. 

 

The general fund is the administrative operating fund of the Rogue Valley Council of 

Governments.  At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund 

was $286,483.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 

unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Both unreserved fund 

balance and total fund balance represents 55.4 percent of total general fund expenditures. 

 

 

 

Charges for services
1.78%

Operating grants and 
contributions

95.47%

Other revenues
2.76%
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RVCOG’s general fund equity decreased by $23,745 during the current fiscal year.  Key factors 

in this decrease are as follows: 

 

1. Indirect charges fell short of what had been anticipated by $31,046, although all other 

revenues were higher, resulting in a decrease in total revenues of $17,651. Indirect 

charges are the major source of revenue for the general fund, with the rate being based on 

the budgeted expenditures of the special revenue fund projects.  A shortfall in this 

revenue source is due to the expenditures of the special revenue fund falling short of the 

amounts budgeted. 

 

2. The actual expenditures for the fiscal year were below the level budgeted, amounting 

to $93,906 (when budgeted contingency is not included).  The major revenue for the 

general fund is indirect charges, which are based on the budgeted expenditures of the 

general fund. It had been anticipated that the total expenditures would exceed revenues 

for the current year, and that resources collected in prior years would be needed.  The 

amount of these resources required was below the anticipated amount by $9,827. 

 

 

  

 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 

Capital assets.  RVCOG’s investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of 

June 30, 2013, amounts to $794,390 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in 

capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery, and equipment.   

 
 

 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

 

Governmental activities 

 

2013 2012 Change 

Land  $       100,000   $       100,000   $                  -  

Buildings           491,413            515,791                 24,378 

Machinery and equipment           202,977            211,533                   8,556         

          Total  $       794,390   $       827,324   $             32,934   

     

 

The total change in RVCOG’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 

$32,934, due entirely to an increase in the accumulated depreciation in buildings and machinery 

and equipment. 

 

Additional information on RVCOG’s capital assets can be found in note 4.C on page 46 of this 

report. 
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Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, RVCOG had no bonded debt outstanding. 
 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Outstanding Debt 

Lease Purchase Agreement 

 

Governmental activities 

 

2013 2012 Change 

Lease purchase agreement  $       205,911   $       233,341   $        (27,430) 

          Total  $       205,911   $       233,341   $        (27,430) 

     

Additional information on RVCOG’s long-term debt can be found in note 4.F on page 49 of this 

report. 

 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets 
 

RVCOG is less affected by the economy locally than it is statewide, due to the fact that a 

majority of the projects undertaken by RVCOG are funded through state grants and contracts. 

Nonetheless, RVCOG does depend to a significant degree on the ability of its members to pay 

dues, which a poor local economy could impact.  While dues are commonly between 1.5% and 

2% of RVCOG’s overall budget ($93,675 in the current year), they are critically important in 

providing a small amount of contingency and in funding activities that are not recoverable 

through indirect (per OMB Circular A-87).  

 

Currently, as it has for the last several years, the State of Oregon is facing major revenue 

shortfalls due to a significant economic downturn affecting the entire state.  As discussed, this is 

a situation that does tend to have a direct impact on RVCOG’s budget, and therefore this was a 

significant consideration during the preparation of RVCOG’s budget for the 2013 fiscal year. 

 

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased to 

$286,483.  RVCOG has appropriated $100,000 of this amount for spending in the 2012-2013 

fiscal year budget.  The federally approved indirect rate, which provides 61.8 percent of the 

general fund resources, is set at 18.0 percent of applicable direct cost of all projects in the special 

revenue fund and has not increased from the previous fiscal year. 

 

Requests for Information 
 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Rogue Valley Council of 

Governments’ finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions 

concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 

information should be addressed to the Finance Manager, Rogue Valley Council of 

Governments, P.O. Box 3275, Central Point, OR 97502. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2013 

  

 

Primary Government 

Governmental Activities 

ASSETS 

 Cash and cash equivalents  $                           140,678  

Receivables                               728,725  

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 

      Land                               100,000  

     Buildings                               491,413  

     Machinery and equipment                               202,977  

          Total assets  $                        1,663,793  

  LIABILITIES 

 Accounts payable and other current liabilities  $                           634,036  

Noncurrent liabilities: 

      Due within one year                                 49,338  

     Due in more than one year                               263,338  

          Total liabilities  $                           946,712  

  NET POSITION 

 Investment in capital assets (net of related debt)  $                           588,480  

Unrestricted                               128,601  

         Total Net Position  $                           717,081  

  The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

 

     
Program Revenues 

 

Net (Expense) 

Revenue and 

Changes in 

Net Position 

Functions/Programs 

 

Expenses 

 

Charges 

for 

Services 

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions 

 

Primary 

Government 

Governmental 

Activities 

Primary Government: 

            Governmental Activities: 

       

 

General government 

 

$   1,256,806 

 

$     7,270 $        317,755 

 

$      (931,781)  

 

Health and welfare              2,599,492 

 

         

72,926       3,077,868 

 

         551,302  

 

Natural resources and 

conservation 

 

        222,968 

  

         224,178 

 

             1,210  

 

Planning 

 

536,925 

 

586          716,561 

 

         180,222  

 

Interest on long-term debt 

 

          14,478 

    

          (14,478)  

 

     Total governmental activities 

 

$   4,630,669 

 

$    80,782 $     4,336,362 

 

$     (213,525)  

         Total primary government 

 

$   4,630,669 

 

$    80,782 $     4,336,362 

 

$     (213,525) 

         

     

General revenues:  

  

     

      Interest earned  

 

                   - 

     

      Private grants and contracts  

     

      Sale of assets  

 

                 - 

     

      Other revenues  

 

$       125,185  

     

          Total general revenues  

 

$       125,185  

     

          Change in Net Position  

 

$      (88,340)  

     

Net Position - beginning  

 

         805,421  

     

Net Position - ending  

 

$       717,081  

         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2013 

     

  
General Special Revenue 

Total Governmental 

Funds 

ASSETS 

    Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 $                      12,406   $                            798   $                      13,204  

Receivables 

 

                         36,494                         647,865                         684,359  

Due from other funds 

 

                       480,000  

 

                       480,000  

Prepaids 

  

                                   -                                     -  

          Total assets 

 

 $                    528,900   $                     648,663   $                 1,177,563  

     LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

    Liabilities: 

         Accounts payable 

 

 $                      25,676   $                     386,132   $                    411,878  

     Payroll payable 

 

                       216,740                                     -                         216,740  

     Due to other funds 

  

                       830,000                         830,000  

          Total liabilities 

 

 $                    242,416   $                  1,216,132   $                 1,458,618  

     Fund Balances: 

         Non-spendable: 

             Advance to other funds 

   

                                   -  

     Unassigned 

 

 $                    286,483  $                   (567,470) $                  (280,987) 

         Total fund balance 

 

 $                    286,483  $                   (567,470) $                  (280,987) 

               Total liabilities and fund balances 

 

 $                    528,899   $                     648,662 

      

 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in 

the statement of net position are different because: 

 

  

Capital assets used in governmental activities 

are not financial resources and, therefore, are 

not reported in the funds.                          97,296  

  
Internal service funds are used by management 

to charge the costs of internal services, 

computer rent, leave liability and building 

operating costs to individual funds.  The assets 

and liabilities of the internal service funds are 

included in governmental activities in the 

statement of net position. 

 

  

                       900,772  

 

Net Position of governmental activities  $                    717,081  

     The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

    

 
General 

Special 

Revenue 

Total 

Governmental 

Funds 

REVENUES 

   Intergovernmental $     212,684  $     3,278,680  $     3,491,364  

Charges for services 379,593         163,807            543,400  

Contributions and donations 

 

       739,927            739,927  

Other revenues   9,536         115,634            125,170  

          Total revenues $     601,813  $     4,298,048  $     4,899,861  

    EXPENDITURES 

   Current: 

        General government $     517,258  

 

$        517,258  

     Health and welfare 

 

$     3,219,020         3,219,020  

     Natural resources and conservation 

 

      373,644          373,644  

     Planning 

 

      773,690          773,690  

          Total expenditures $     517,258  $     4,366,354  $     4,883,612  

    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures $       84,555  

$        

(68,306) $          16,249  

    OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

   Transfers in 

 

$          52,000  $          52,000  

Transfers out $   (108,300)        -         (108,300) 

          Total other financing sources (uses) $   (108,300) $          52,000  $       (56,300) 

              Net change in fund balance $     (23,745) $       (16,306) $       (40,051) 

Fund balance - beginning       310,228     (551,164)        (240,936) 

Fund balance - ending $      286,483  $     (567,470) $     (280,987) 

 

  

  The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balance of Governmental Funds 

To the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

  Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 

activities (see page 28) are different because: 

 

  Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (see page 30)  $        (40,051) 

  Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 

internal services, computer rent, leave liability, vehicle operating and 

building operating costs to individual funds.  The net revenue of certain 

activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental 

activities. 

           Internal service fund  $        (25,814) 

          Computer rental fund                 5,744  

          Leave liability fund            (65,312) 

          Vehicle operating & maintenance fund                 (677) 

          Building operating & maintenance fund              37,770  

                    Net revenues  $        (48,289) 

  Change in net position of governmental activities (see page 28)  $        (88,340) 

  The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

     

 
Budgeted Amounts 

 
Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative) 

 
Original Final 

Actual 

Amounts 

REVENUES 

    Intergovernmental  $       98,465   $         208,465   $       212,684   $            4,219  

Charges for services 410,999              410,999            379,593            (31,406) 

Contributions and donations    -                      -                      -                       -  

Other revenues     -                      -               9,536               9,536  

          Total revenues  $     509,464   $         619,464   $       601,813   $       (17,651) 

     EXPENDITURES 

    Current: 

         General government  $     501,164   $         611,164   $      517,258   $         93,906  

        Total expenditures  $     501,164   $         611,164   $      517,258   $         93,906  

     Excess of revenues over expenditures $         8,300  $            8,300 $        84,555  $         76,255  

     OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

   Transfers in  $       27,700  $          27,700   $                  -   $      (27,700) 

Transfers out     (136,000)       (136,000)     (108,300)       27,700  

        Total other financing sources (uses) $   (108,300)  $     (108,300)  $    (108,300)  $                   -  

             Net change in fund balance  $   (100,000)  $     (100,000)  $      (23,745)  $        76,255 

Fund balance - beginning      100,000             100,000        310,228       210,228 

Fund balance - ending  $                 -   $                    -  $       286,483  $      286,483 

     The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Special Revenue Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

      

 

 

 Budgeted Amounts 

 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative) 

 
Original Final 

Actual 

Amounts 

REVENUES 

    Intergovernmental $  3,556,110  $  3,694,610  $   3,278,680  $      (415,930) 

Charges for services    118,882        120,882      163,807           42,925  

Contributions and donations    802,500        802,500        739,927          (62,573) 

Other revenues    202,482        202,482         115,634       (86,848) 

        Total revenues $  4,679,974  $  4,820,474  $   4,298,048  $      (522,426) 

     EXPENDITURES 

    Current: 

         Health and welfare $  3,200,658  $  3,300,658  $   3,219,022  $          81,636  

     Natural resources and conservation 623,597        623,597        373,644   249,953  

     Planning      932,719         973,219        773,690          199,529  

        Total expenditures $  4,756,974  $  4,897,474  $   4,366,356  $        531,118  

     Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures $    (77,000) $    (77,000) $     (68,308) $            8,692  

     OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

   Transfers in $       52,000  $       52,000  $        52,000  $                    -  

        Total other financing sources (uses) $       52,000  $       52,000  $        52,000  $                    -  
             Net change in fund balance $    (25,000) $    (25,000) $     (16,308) $            8,692  

Fund balance - beginning          25,000         25,000      (551,164)       (576,164) 

Fund balance - ending $                 -  $                 -  $   (567,472) $      (567,472) 

          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Governmental 

Activities - Internal 

Service Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:

      Cash and cash equivalents 127,474$                     

      Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables) 44,366                         

      Due from other funds 350,000                       

          Total current assets 521,840$                     

Long-term assets:

     Capital assets

          Land 100,000$                     

          Buildings 725,638                       

          Machinery and equipment 198,778                       

          Less accumulated depreciation (327,322)                      

          Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 697,094$                     

          Total long-term assets 697,094$                     

          Total assets 1,218,934$                  

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

     Accounts payable and other current liabilities 6,278$                         

     Uncompensated absences-current portion 18,706                         

     Lease/purchase agreement payable-current portion 27,430                         

          Total current liabilities 52,414$                       

Long-term liabilities

     Uncompensated absences-non-current portion 87,268$                       

     Lease/purchase agreement payable-non-current portion 178,480                       

          Total long-term liabilities 265,748$                     

          Total liabilities 318,162$                     

NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) 476,725$                     

Unrestricted 424,047                       

         Total net position 900,772$                     

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Proprietary Funds
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

  

 

Governmental 

Activities - Internal 

Service Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES 

 Charges for services: 

       Charges for services  $             527,610  

      Leave liability accrual charges                 317,674  

      Other revenues                          15  

          Total operating revenues  $             845,299  

  OPERATING EXPENSES 

 Costs of services  $             524,917  

Leave liability costs                 383,001  

Depreciation                   32,934  

          Total operating expenses  $             940,852  

            Operating income  $             (95,553) 

  NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

 Interest expense  $               (9,036) 

          Income (loss) before contributions and transfers  $           (104,589) 

  Transfers In  $               56,300  

Change in Net Position  $             (48,289) 

  Total Net Position - beginning  $             949,061  

  Total Net Position - ending  $             900,772  

  The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

  

 

Governmental 

Activities - 

Internal Service 

Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 Receipts from interfund services provided  $             845,284  

Receipts from outside services provided                 (27,590) 

Payments to suppliers               (256,324) 

Payments to employees               (647,164) 

          Net cash used by operating activities  $             (85,794) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITES 

 Interfund loans (short-term)  $                        -  

Transfers from other funds                   14,700  

          Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities  $               14,700  

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 

ACTIVITES 

 Principle paid on capital debt  $             (27,431) 

Interest paid on capital debt                   (9,036) 

          Net cash used by capital and related financing activities  $             (60,748) 

            Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  $           (131,842) 

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1                 193,435  

  Cash and cash equivalents - June 30  $               61,593  

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating income  $             (95,553) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities: 

       Depreciation  $               32,934  

      Decrease in accounts receivable                 (27,605) 

      Increase in prepaids                            -  

      Decrease in uncompensated absences                   12,443  

      Increase in accounts payable                   (8,013) 

          Total adjustments  $                 9,759  

  Net cash used by operating activities  $             (85,794) 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: 

Contributions of capital assets from government (net of related debt)  $             148,530  

  The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

 A. Reporting Entity 
 

The Rogue Valley Council of Governments (RVCOG) is an independent local 

governmental entity formed under the authority of Oregon Revised Statutes 

(ORS) Chapter 190 on September 30, 1968.  Although RVCOG’s governing 

board includes elected officials representing several of the local governmental 

units, counties, cities and special districts, located in Jackson and Josephine 

Counties, none of these other governing bodies exert direct oversight over 

RVCOG.  In addition, RVCOG does not exert oversight authority over any other 

local governmental entity.  The decisions of the RVCOG Board are not binding 

on any member entity.  RVCOG is not a component unit of any other local 

governmental entity, nor is any other governmental entity a component unit of 

RVCOG. 

 

 B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and 

the statement of changes in net position) report information on all of RVCOG’s 

activities.  The effect of interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in 

the process of consolidating the funds for these statements.   

 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 

of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses 

are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  

Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 

use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 

function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 

the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes 

and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 

instead as general revenues. 

 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary 

funds.  Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in 

the fund financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  

  

 C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement 

presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 

proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 

expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 

related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as 

all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  

Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  

For this purpose, the RVCOG considers revenues to be available if they are 

collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures 

generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  

However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 

compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 

payment is due. 

 

Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 

accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All 

other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash 

is received by RVCOG. 

 

The RVCOG reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

The general fund is the RVCOG’s primary operating fund.  It 

accounts for all financial resources of the general government, 

except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 

The special revenue fund accounts for all financial resources 

associated with the functional programs carried out by the RVCOG 

with the exception of the administrative function which is 

accounted for in the general fund. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement 

presentation (continued) 
 

Additionally, the RVCOG reports the following fund types: 

 

  Internal service funds account for administrative services, not 

included in the general fund, information systems operation, 

computer acquisition and replacement, building operations, vehicle 

operations and leave liability services provided to other RVCOG 

departments, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement 

basis. 

 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 

government-wide financial statements. 

 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 

applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and 

contracts, and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.  Internally 

dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 

revenues. 

 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-

operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 

providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 

proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues 

of the government’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and 

services.  Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of sales 

and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 

revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 

revenues and expenses. 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 

RVCOG’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 

they are needed. 

 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity 
 

1. Deposits and investments 

 

The RVCOG’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, 

demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three 

months or less from the date of acquisition. 

 

RVCOG has no investments. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued) 
 

2. Receivables and payables 

 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 

outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other 

funds.” 

 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset 

by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate 

that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available 

financial resources. 

 

All trade receivables are shown at actual amount with no allowance for un-

collectables included because all receivables are expected to be collected 

eventually. 

 

3. Prepaid items 

 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 

and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial 

statements. 

 

4. Capital assets 

 

Capital assets, which include land, building, and equipment, are reported in the 

applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the government-

wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by RVCOG as assets with an 

initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an 

estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Such assets are recorded at historical 

cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital 

assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 

asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued) 
 

Building and equipment of the RVCOG is depreciated using the straight line 

method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Assets   Years 

Buildings 35 

Vehicles 5 

Office Equipment 5 

Computer Equipment 5 

 

 

5. Compensated absences 

 

It is RVCOG’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused 

vacation and sick pay benefits.  Going forward from January 2014 there is no 

longer a RVCOG-wide liability for accumulated sick leave (prior policy allowed 

payment of 20% of accumulated sick leave for a separating employee in “good 

standing”), although existing employees are grandfathered in.  All vacation pay is 

expensed when incurred in the government-wide, governmental, and proprietary 

funds financial statements and reported as a liability in the internal service funds 

where resources are accumulated to pay it. 

 

6. Long-term obligations 

 

In the government-wide financial statements, and governmental and proprietary 

fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 

obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 

business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 

 

7. Fund equity 

 

In the fund financial statements, Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 

Definitions (GASB 54) defines the different types of fund balances that a 

governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes. GASB 54 requires 

the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the five fund 

balance components listed below: 

 

Non-spendable – This component includes amounts that cannot be spent 

because they are either (1) not in spendable form or (2) legally or 

contractually required to be maintained intact. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued) 
 

Restricted – This component consists of amounts that can be spent only 

for specific purposes stipulated by external resource providers, 

constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.  RVCOG has no 

restricted fund balance. 

 

Committed – This component consists of amounts that can only be spent 

for specific purposes determined by a formal action of RVCOG’s highest 

level of decision-making authority, which includes resolutions.  Those 

committed amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless RVCOG 

removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 

(resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts.  RVCOG 

has no committed fund balance. 

 

Assigned – This component consists of amounts that are intended to be 

used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria 

to be classified as restricted or committed.  The authority for assigning 

fund balance is expressed by the Board of Directors, or its designee as 

established in RVCOG’s Fund Balance Policy.  RVCOG has no assigned 

fund balance. 

 

Unassigned – This residual classification of fund balance includes all 

spendable amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned. 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is 

RVCOG’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources 

(committed, assigned and unassigned) as they are needed.  When unrestricted 

resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it is 

RVCOG’s policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then 

unassigned, as they are needed. 

 

Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements 

 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance 

sheet and the government-wide statement of net position 

 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund 

balance-total governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as 

reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  One element of that 

reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not 

due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”   
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Note 3 - Stewardship, compliance, and accountability 

 

A. Budgetary information 
 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 

accounting principles for all governmental funds.  All annual appropriations lapse 

at fiscal year end. 

 

In the spring of each year the Executive Director submits a proposed budget to the budget 

committee.  This committee comprises three members of the Board of Directors and an 

equal number of concerned citizens who are appointed by the Board.  The budget 

committee reviews the budget as submitted, and holds a public hearing for the purpose of 

discussing the budget with the various department managers and to receive citizen 

comments.  The budget committee approves the budget after making any changes that the 

members deem necessary, and recommends it to the Board of Directors.  The Board can 

then make adjustments to the recommended budget, but are limited to no more than a 10 

percent increase in each fund.  The Board of Directors adopts the budget and sets 

appropriations by resolution prior to July 1.   

 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund with the exception of the Special 

Revenue Fund, which is prepared by department.  Only the Special Revenue Fund 

is divided into programmatic departments, the General Fund includes only the 

organization’s central administrative functions.  Department heads may make 

transfers of appropriations within a department’s programs; all other changes to 

the appropriations must be approved by the Board.  The legal level of budgetary 

control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed 

appropriations) is the fund level for all funds except the Special Revenue Fund, 

which is at the department level.  The Board made supplemental budgetary 

appropriations during the year in the Special Revenue Fund. 

 

 B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2013, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in 

either the General or Special Revenue funds. 

 

 C. Deficit fund equity 
 

The Special Revenue fund had a deficit fund balance, most of it historical (from 

the latter half of the 1990s) of $567,470 as of June 30, 2013. The expenditures for 

a number of the projects within the fund exceeded revenues by a net of $16,306 

during the year then ended.  This amount increased the deficit beginning fund 

balance of $551,164. 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds 

 

A. Deposits and investments 
 

RVCOG maintains cash and investments with AmericanWest Bank (formerly Premier 

West Bank) and Evergreen Federal Savings. 

 

At year end, RVCOG’s carrying amount of deposits in AmericanWest Bank was 

$135,152 and the bank balance was $132,744. The carrying amount of deposits in 

Evergreen Federal Savings was $5,225 and the bank balance was $5,225.   Of the 

bank balances, $250,000 is covered by federal depository insurance.  The 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 40, Deposits 

and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires government agencies to disclose an 

indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year-end.  If bank deposits 

at year-end are not entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by 

RVCOG or by its agent in RVCOG’s name, the custodial credit risk that exists 

must be disclosed.  Deposits with financial institutions are held in RVCOG’s 

name and comprise bank demand deposits.  During 2007, the legislature revised 

ORS 295 which governs the collateralization of Oregon public funds.  This 

revision created a shared liability structure for bank depositories and streamlined 

the collateralization process for local governments.  The Office of the State 

Treasurer monitors the banks collateral and issues a list of qualified bank 

depositories to public officials to verify the banks they do business with comply 

with State collateralization requirements.  RVCOG’s financial institution, 

AmericanWest Bank, is on the approved list. 

 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the 

government’s deposits may not be returned to it.  RVCOG does not have a formal 

deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

 

The custodian, Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, is the agent of the depository 

bank.  The securities pledged are designated as subject to the Pledge Agreement 

between the Depository Bank, Custodian Bank and Office of the State Treasurer 

(OST) and are held for the benefit of the OST on behalf of the public depositors. 

 

As of June 30, 2013 and for the year then ended, RVCOG was in compliance with the 

aforementioned State of Oregon statutes. 

 

Credit Risk – State Statutes authorize RVCOG to invest primarily in general obligations 

of the U.S. Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon 

municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, time certificates of 

deposit, certain commercial paper, and the Oregon State Treasury LGIP, among others.  

RVCOG has no formal investment policy that further restricts its investment choices. 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 

 

A. Deposits and investment (continued) 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk – RVCOG is required to provide information about the 

concentration of credit risk associated with its investments in one issuer that represents 5 

percent or more of the total investments, excluding investments in external investment 

pools or those issued and explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government.  RVCOG has no 

such investments. 

 

Interest Rate Risk – RVCOG has no formal investment policy that explicitly limits 

investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from 

increasing interest rates. 

 

RVCOG had no investments as of June 30, 2013. 

 

 B. Receivables 
 

Receivables as of year-end for RVCOG’s individual major funds and internal 

service funds in the aggregate are as follows: 

 

Receivables: General 

Special 

Revenue Other Funds Total 

Accounts  $           13,778   $                776   $                     -   $           14,554  

Intergovernmental             22,716              647,089              44,366            714,171  

      Net total receivables  $           36,494   $         647,865   $           44,366   $         728,725  

      

 

 

 

RVCOG’s accounts receivable are pledged as collateral for the line of credit. See note 4.G. 

 

Governmental funds reported no deferred revenue in connection with receivables for 

revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current 

period.   
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 

 

 C. Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows: 

 
Primary Government 

    

Governmental Activities 

Beginning 

Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

         Land  $         100,000  

  

 $         100,000  

Total capital assets, not being depreciated  $         100,000   $                    -   $                    -   $         100,000  

     Capital assets, being depreciated: 
         Building  $         725,639   $                    -   $                    -   $         725,639  

     Equipment             296,074                         -                         -              296,074  

Total capital assets, being depreciated  $      1,021,713   $                    -   $                    -   $      1,021,713  

     Less accumulated depreciation for: 
         Building  $       (224,306)  $         (24,378) 

 

 $       (248,684) 

     Equipment             (70,083)               (8,556) 

 

            (78,639) 

Total accumulated depreciation  $       (294,389)  $         (32,934)  $                    -   $       (327,323) 

     Total capital assets, being depreciated, net  $         727,324   $         (32,934)  $                    -   $         694,390  

     Governmental activities capital assets, net  $         827,324   $         (32,934)  $                    -   $         794,390  
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 

 

 C. Capital Asset (continued) 
 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary 

government as follows: 

 
Governmental Activities 

   
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are charged to the various 

functions based on their usage of the assets. 
      General government 

  
 $             8,635  

     Health and welfare 

  

              15,377  

     Natural resources and conservation 

  

                3,289  

     Planning 
  

 $             5,634  

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

  

 $           32,934  

   

   

     

 D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers 
 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Interfund liability of the Special Revenue fund represents cash advances to that fund from other 

funds due to a negative cash balance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Funds Due from other funds Due to other funds 

General $                        480,000  

 Leave Liability $                        100,000  

 Building Operations and 

Maintenance $                        150,000  

 Computer Rental Fund $                          50,000  

 Internal Service $                          50,000  

 Special Revenue                                       -  $                        830,000  

     Total $                        830,000  $                        830,000  
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 

 

D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers (continued) 
 

Interfund transfers: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Interfund transfers from the General Fund include program support for the Natural 

Resources Department ($15,000) the Senior and Disabilities Services Department 

($27,000), and for general grant writing support ($15,000); as well as a transfer to the 

Building Operations and Maintenance Fund to provide funds for future building 

remodeling. 

 

E. Leases 
 

Capital Leases 

 

RVCOG has entered into lease/purchase agreements as lessee for financing the 

acquisition of an office building.  This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease 

for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of 

their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. 

 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Transfers out: Transfers in: Amount 

General Special Revenue  $                              52,000  

General Internal Service  $                              41,600  

General 

Building Operations and 

Maintenance  $                              14,700  

     Total 

 

 $                            108,300  

   

Asset: 

Governmental 

Activities 

     Land  $         100,000  

     Building             725,639  

     Less accumulated depreciation          (248,684) 

          Total  $         576,955  
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 

 

E. Leases (continued) 
 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 

lease payments as of June 30, 2013, were as follows: 

Year ending June 30 

Governmental 

Activities 

2014 $               36,466  

2015                   36,466  

2016                   36,466  

2017                   36,466  

2018                   36,466  

2019                   36,466  

2020                   20,622  

     Total minimum lease payments            $ 239,418  

     Less amount representing interest     $   33,507  

     Present value of minimum lease payments $ 205,911  

 

 

 F. Long-term Debt 
 

Changes in long-term liabilities 

 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows: 

 

 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Due Within 

One Year 

Governmental activities: 

     Capital leases $      233,341  $                 -                      $        27,430  $     205,911  $       28,143  

Compensated absences            93,531          240,763          228,320          105,974            21,195  

     Governmental activity 

               Long-term liabilities $      326,872  $     240,763  $      255,750  $      311,885  $       49,338  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 51 

Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 

 

 F. Long-term Debt (continued) 
 

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds.  Accordingly, 

long-term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for 

governmental activities.  At year-end $18,706 of internal service funds compensated 

absences are included in the above amounts.  Compensated absences are generally 

liquidated by the internal service funds where resources are accumulated for that 

purpose. 

 

 G. Current Debt 
 

Changes in current liabilities 

 

Current liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows: 

 

 

 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Governmental activities: 

    Loans payable  $                   -   $       200,000   $       200,000   $                   -  

     Governmental activity 

              Current liabilities  $                   -   $       200,000   $       200,000   $                   -  

     RVCOG maintains a line of credit of $250,000 to meet short-term cash flow needs.  

This line of credit is liquidated as cash resources become available and is not 

intended to fund long-term needs.  RVCOG’s accounts receivable are pledged as 

collateral for the line of credit. 

 

Note 5 - Other information 

 

A. Risk management 
 

RVCOG’s is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and workers’ 

compensation for which RVCOG’s carries commercial insurance. 

 

There were no claim settlements that exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past 

three years. 
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Note 5 - Other information (continued) 

 

 B. Contingent liabilities 
 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 

by grantor agencies, principally the State of Oregon.  Any disallowed claims, including 

amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The 

amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 

determined at this time, although RVCOG expects such amounts, if any, to be 

immaterial. 

 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans 

 

RVCOG provides pension benefits to all of its regular employees through a defined 

contribution plan.  In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts 

contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.  Employees are eligible to join the 

plan following six months of service.  At the end of the fiscal year there were 40 

employees participating in the plan.  The plan is a single employer plan administered by 

John Hancock Life Insurance Company.  Stand alone financial reports are issued to 

each individual plan participant. 

 

Funding policy.  The retirement plan is funded by employer contributions of 13.02%.  

Employer and employee contributions are fully vested immediately upon deposit, 

although a policy change will occur in 2014 that will institute a graduated vesting 

schedule.  The plan is on a “pay as you go” basis with a contribution rate established by 

a policy adopted by the Board of Directors. 

 

Annual pension cost.  RVCOG’s current year contributions were calculated based on 

eligible payroll of $1,632,006 resulting in an employer contribution of $212,487. 

 

Employer contributions for fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011  totaled $214,811 

and $221,994, respectively. 

 

 D.  Post employment and termination benefits 

 

Post employment benefits.  RVCOG implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, 

(OPEB) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  RVCOG provides the opportunity for 

retirees to remain on the health and dental insurance plans through a COBRA arrangement 

until they reach age 65.  RVCOG currently has one retiree taking advantage of this 

opportunity, and has determined  that the implicit rate subsidy cost for one retiree is 

immaterial. 

 

Termination benefits.  RVCOG’s provides no benefits to terminated employees. 
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Note 5 - Other information (continued) 

 

E.  Other Reporting Issues 

 

The Government Accounting Standards Board has issued a number of Statements that are 

not applicable to RVCOG, but need to be addressed.  These include: Statement No. 48, 

“Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets 

and Future Revenues”; No. 49, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution 

Remediation Obligations”; No. 50, “Pension Disclosures”; No. 51, “Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets”; No. 53, “Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Derivative Instruments”; No. 58, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 

Bankruptcies”; No. 60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 

arrangements”; No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity; Omnibus – an amendment of 

GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 34”; No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial 

Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 

Pronouncements”; and, No. 64, “Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting 

Termination Provisions”. 
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 Rogue Valley Council of Governments  

Special Revenue Fund  

Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budget and Actual  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

     

 
Budgeted Amounts  

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)  

 
Original  Final  Actual Amounts  

EXPENDITURES  

    Current:  

         Health and welfare  

              Senior and disability services   $        1,458,839   $        1,558,839   $        1,516,229   $            42,610  

          Senior nutrition program             1,741,819             1,741,819             1,702,791                 39,028  

                Total health and welfare   $        3,200,658   $        3,300,658   $        3,219,020   $            81,638  

          Natural resources and conservation   $           623,597   $           623,597   $           373,644   $           249,953  

          Natural resources   $           623,597   $           623,597   $           373,644   $           249,953  

          Planning  

              Community development  $            47,300   $            87,800   $            76,794   $            11,006  

          Transportation planning               849,419               849,419               672,553               176,866  

          Land use planning                 36,000                 36,000                 24,343                 11,657  

                Total planning   $           932,719   $           973,219   $           773,690   $           199,529  

               Total expenditures   $        4,756,974   $        4,897,474   $        4,366,354   $           531,120  
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
       

Internal Service Funds 

 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services 

provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the 

government and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

 

Computer Rental Fund - This fund is used to account for the rental of computers 

to other departments and related costs. 

 

Internal Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation and 

allocation of costs associated with certain administrative functions including: 

finance, personnel, photocopy, mail room, etc. 

 

Building Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Fund - This fund is used to 

account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with building 

operations. 

 

Vehicle Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Fund - This fund is used to account 

for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with vehicle fleet 

operations. 

 

Leave Liability Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of 

resources to pay for leave used by employees and to allocation the associated 

costs to the appropriate projects at the time the leave is accrued. 
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Computer 

Rental 

Fund

Internal 

Service 

Fund

Building                        

O & M 

Fund

Vehicle                        

O & M 

Fund

Leave 

Liability 

Fund Totals

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 21,196$      31,517$      47,315$      12,072$      15,374$      127,474$       

Receivables 44,366        44,366           

Due from other funds 50,000        50,000        150,000      -                  100,000      350,000         

          Total current assets 71,196$      125,883$    197,315$    12,072$      115,374$    521,840$       

Long-term assets:

Capital assets

    Land 100,000$    100,000$       

    Buildings 725,638      725,638         

    Machinery and equipment 14,459        184,319$    198,778         

    Less accumulated depreciation (248,684)     (78,638)       (327,322)       

          Total capital assets (net of 

accumulated depreciation) -$                -$                591,413$    105,681$    -$                697,094$       

          Total long-term assets -$                -$                591,413$    105,681$    -$                697,094$       

          Total assets 71,196$      125,883$    788,728$    117,753$    115,374$    1,218,934$    

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities 3,318$        724$           2,236$        6,278$           

Uncompensated absences-current 

portion 18,706$      18,706           

Lease/purchase agreement 

payable-current portion 27,430        27,430           

          Total current liabilities -$                3,318$        28,154$      2,236$        18,706$      52,414$         

Long-term liabilities

Uncompensated absences-non-

current portion 87,268$      87,268$         

Lease/purchase agreement 

payable-non-current portion 178,480$    178,480         

          Total long-term liabilities -$                -$                178,480$    -$                87,268$      265,748$       

          Total liabilities -$                3,318$        206,634$    2,236$        105,974$    318,162$       

NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets (net 

of related debt) 371,044$    105,681$    476,725$       

Unrestricted 71,196$      122,565$    211,050      9,836          9,400$        424,047         

         Total net position 71,196$      122,565$    582,094$    115,517$    9,400$        900,772$       

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Combining Statement of Net Position

All Proprietary Fund Types

June 30, 2013
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Computer 

Rental Fund

Internal 

Service Fund

Building                        

O & M Fund

Vehicle                        

O & M Fund

Leave 

Liability 

Fund Totals

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services:

      Charges for services 12,183$        377,914$      93,412$        44,101$        527,610$      

      Leave liability accrual charges 317,674$      317,674        

      Other revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    15                 15                 

          Total operating revenues 12,183$        377,914$      93,412$        44,101$        317,689$      845,299$      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Costs of services 6,439$          445,328$      36,928$        36,222$        -                    524,917$      

Leave liability costs 383,001$      383,001        

Depreciation 24,378          8,556            32,934          

          Total operating expenses 6,439$          445,328$      61,306$        44,778$        383,001$      940,852$      

          Operating income 5,744$          (67,414)$       32,106$        (677)$            (65,312)$       (95,553)$       

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest expense (9,036)$         (9,036)$         

          Income before contributions and 

transfers 5,744$          (67,414)$       23,070$        (677)$            (65,312)$       (104,589)$     

Transfers In 41,600          14,700          56,300          

Change in net position 5,744$          (25,814)$       37,770$        (677)$            (65,312)$       (48,289)$       

Total net position - beginning 65,452          148,379        544,324        116,194        74,712          949,061        

Total net position - ending 71,196$        122,565$      582,094$      115,517$      9,400$          900,772$      

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

All Proprietary Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Computer 

Rental Fund

Internal 

Service Fund

Building                        

O & M Fund

Vehicle                        

O & M Fund

Leave 

Liability 

Fund Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from interfund services provided 12,183$        377,914$      93,412$        44,101$        317,674$      845,284$      

Receipts from outside services provided (27,605)         -                    -                    15                 (27,590)         

Payments to suppliers (6,439)           (173,505)       (40,147)         (36,233)         -                    (256,324)       

Payments to employees -                    (276,453)       -                    (153)              (370,558)       (647,164)       

          Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,744$          (99,649)$       53,265$        7,715$          (52,869)$       (85,794)$       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITES

Interfund loans (short-term) (40,000)$       50,000$        (60,000)$       -$                  50,000$        -$                  

Transfers from other funds -                    14,700          -                    14,700          

          Net cash (used) provided by noncapital financing 

activities (40,000)$       50,000$        (45,300)$       -$                  50,000$        14,700$        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTIVITES

Purchase of capital assets for general purposes (24,281)$       -$                  -                    (24,281)$       

Principle paid on capital debt (27,431)         -                    -                    (27,431)         

Interest paid on capital debt (9,036)           -                    -                    (9,036)           

          Net cash used by capital and related financing activities -$                  -$                  (60,748)$       -$                  -$                  (60,748)$       

          Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (34,256)$       (49,649)$       (52,783)$       7,715$          (2,869)$         (131,842)$     

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1 55,452          39,566          75,817          4,357            18,243          193,435        

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30 21,196$        (10,083)$       23,034$        12,072$        15,374$        61,593$        

Operating income 5,744$          (67,414)$       32,106$        (677)$            (65,312)$       (95,553)$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities:

      Depreciation -$                  -                    24,378$        8,556$          -                    32,934$        

      Decrease in accounts receivable -                    (27,605)$       -                    -                    -                    (27,605)         

      Increase in uncompensated absences -                    -                    -                    -                    12,443$        12,443          

      Decrease in accounts payable -                    (4,630)           (3,219)           (164)              -                    (8,013)           

          Total adjustments -$                  (32,235)$       21,159$        8,392$          12,443$        9,759$          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,744$          (99,649)$       53,265$        7,715$          (52,869)$       (85,794)$       

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedules by Source 

June 30, 2013 

  Governmental funds capital assets: 

 
      Machinery and equipment  $         97,296  

          Total governmental funds capital assets  $         97,296  

  Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source: 

       General fund  $         62,092  

      Special revenue fund  $         35,204  

          Total governmental funds capital assets  $         97,296  

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to 

governmental funds.  Accordingly, the capital assets reported on internal 

service funds are excluded from the above amounts.  Generally, the capital 

assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in 

the statement of net position. 

Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedules by Function and Activity 

June 30, 2013 

  

Function and Activity 

Machinery and 

Equipment 

General government: 

       Administration  $           62,092  

          Total general government  $           62,092  

  Health and welfare: 

        Senior nutrition program  $             6,290  

          Total health and welfare  $             6,290  

  Planning: 

       Data processing  $           20,850  

          Total planning  $           20,850  

  Natural resources and conservation 

       Data processing  $             8,064  

          Total natural resources and conservation  $             8,064  

            Total governmental funds capital assets  $           97,296  

  This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to 

governmental funds.  Accordingly, the capital assets reported on internal 

service funds are excluded from the above amounts.  Generally, the 

capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental 

activities in the statement of net position. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATISTICAL SECTION 

 
Financial trend data found on pages 69 through 80 includes current fiscal year and ten-year 

historical data to help the reader understand how RVCOG’s financial performance has changed 

over time.  

 

Debt relate data is found on page 72, including ratio of total debt service expenditures to total 

non-capital expenditures, and total debt payable and debt per capita. 

 

Operating information on pages 73 and 74 includes schedules related to service and staffing 

statistics to help the reader understand how RVCOG’s financial report relates to its service and 

operating activities. 

 

Demographic and economic information is found on pages 75 and 82.  These schedules contain 

demographic and economic indicators to assist the reader in understanding the environment 

within which RVCOG’s financial activities take place.  
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Expenses

General government 1,147,400           

Health and welfare 2,576,141           

Natural resources and conservation 451,653              

Planning 734,150              

Interest on long-term debt 11,434                

          Total expenses 4,920,778           

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Government-wide Expenses by Function

Current Year

(unaudited)
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Government-wide Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(unaudited) 

 Fiscal Year 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

      

Current and other assets                

870,299  

            

1,081,984  

            

1,119,419  

            

1,207,215  

               

846,986  

Capital assets                

631,090  

               

615,207  

               

594,026  

               

602,776  

               

849,353  

          Total assets             

1,501,389  

            

1,697,191  

            

1,713,445  

            

1,809,991  

            

1,696,339  

      

Long-term liabilities                

611,459  

               

466,799  

               

343,509  

               

324,583  

               

375,222  

Other liabilities                

487,531  

               

653,698  

               

665,338  

               

671,963  

               

604,189  

          Total liabilities             

1,098,990  

            

1,120,497  

            

1,008,847  

               

996,546  

               

979,411  

      

Net assets invested in capital assets, 

net 

               

237,055  

               

237,007  

               

233,407  

               

259,268  

               

524,770  

Unrestricted net position                

165,344  

               

339,687  

               

471,190  

               

554,177  

               

192,158  

          Total net Position                

402,399  

               

576,694  

               

704,597  

               

813,445  

               

716,928  

      

 Fiscal Year 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

      

Current and other assets                

910,272  

            

1,039,960  

            

1,061,225  

               

996,786  

               

869,403  

Capital assets                

840,262  

               

860,587  

               

835,028  

               

827,324  

               

794,390  

          Total assets             

1,750,534  

            

1,900,547  

            

1,896,253  

            

1,824,110  

            

1,663,793  

      

Long-term liabilities                

406,261  

               

379,873  

               

349,966  

               

280,736  

               

312,676  

Other liabilities                

602,705  

               

704,227  

               

702,245  

               

737,953  

               

634,036  

          Total liabilities             

1,008,966  

            

1,084,100  

            

1,052,211  

            

1,018,689  

               

946,712  

      

Net assets invested in capital assets, 

net 

               

535,838  

               

577,577  

               

575,884  

               

593,983  

               

588,480  

Unrestricted net position                

205,730  

               

238,870  

               

268,158  

               

211,438  

               

128,601  

          Total net position                

741,568  

               

816,447  

               

844,042  

               

805,421  

               

717,081  
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2007

Total debt service expenditures:

     Interest expense 23,418                22,432                21,385                23,858                26,416                

     Principle paid - revenue bonds 74,320                -                          

     Principle paid - capital lease 24,224                15,836                16,822                17,869                18,926                

          Total debt service expenditures 121,962              38,268                38,207                41,727                45,342                

Total noncapital expenditures 3,837,256           4,104,877           4,104,877           4,356,701           4,225,041           

Ratio of debt service expenditures to 

noncapital expenditures 3.18% 0.93% 0.93% 0.96% 1.07%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Total debt service expenditures:

     Interest expense 19,313                11,374                11,434                11,434                10,663                

     Principle paid - revenue bonds

     Principle paid - capital lease 20,159                21,414                23,866                23,866                25,803                

          Total debt service expenditures 39,472                32,788                35,300                35,300                36,466                

Total noncapital expenditures 4,749,589           4,673,496           4,909,344           4,920,778           4,630,669           

Ratio of debt service expenditures to 

noncapital expenditures 0.83% 0.70% 0.72% 0.72% 0.79%

Fiscal Year

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Governmental Funds Ratio of Total Debt Service Expenditures

To Total Noncapital Expenditures

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)

Fiscal Year

 
 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Principle balance

     Revenue bonds -                          

     Capital lease 394,036              378,200              378,200              343,509              324,583              

Total principle balance 394,036              378,200              378,200              343,509              324,583              

Population 269,800              273,961              271,160              265,250              288,595              

Total debt per capita 1.46$                  1.38$                  1.39$                  1.30$                  1.12$                  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Principle balance

     Revenue bonds

     Capital lease 304,424              283,010              259,144              233,341              205,911              

Total principle balance 304,424              283,010              259,144              233,341              205,911              

Population 290,675              291,345              286,685              287,425              289,125              

Total debt per capita 1.05$                  0.97$                  0.90$                  0.81$                  0.71$                  

Fiscal Year

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Governmental Funds Total Debt Payable and Total Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)

Fiscal Year
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Selective Comparative Demographic Statistics 

2010 Census Used As Basis For Updates 
(unaudited) 

     

Description 

Jackson 

County 

Josephine 

County Oregon United States 

% of population under 5 years 5.8 5.1 6.1 6.3 

     % of population under 18 years 21.6 20.1 22.7 24.3 

     % of population over 65 years 18.2 22.8 13.4 13.7 

     Females as % of population 51.3 51.3 50.5 50.8 

     White persons as % of population 93.8 91.2 85.2 73.9 

     Black persons as % of population 0.5 0.6 1.8 12.6 

     % of high school graduates 89.0 88.8 89.2 85.9 

     % of college graduates (at least 

bachelor's degree) 24.1 17.2 29.3 28.7 

     % of homeownership 64.8 63.9 61.6 63.9 

     Households 82,524 34,151 1,513,005 115,241,776 

     Persons per household 2.44 2.39 2.50 2.63 

     Median household income  $             44,810   $             34,430   $             49,161   $             51,371  

     Per capita income  $             24,182   $             21,256   $               5,893   $             27,041  

     % of families below poverty level 17.5 20.9 16.8 15.7 

     Persons per square mile 73.0 50.4 39.9 87.4 

     United States Census 2010 

   

 

     



 77 

 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
  

Selected Demographic Statistics 
  

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
  

(unaudited) 

  

        

Fiscal 

Year Population 

Labor 

Force 

Total Personal 

Income 

Per Capita 

Personal 

Income 

Unemployment 

Rates 

 

Unemployed 

Jackson 

County 

       

2004        189,175  

         

98,433   $ 5,695,113,375   $      30,105  7.1% 

 

           6,989  

2005        192,054  

         

99,278   $ 6,008,793,498   $      31,287  6.2% 

 

           6,155  

2006        195,719  

       

100,366   $ 6,604,341,936   $      33,744  5.7% 

 

           5,721  

2007        198,978  

       

101,435   $ 6,881,256,174   $      34,583  5.6% 

 

           5,680  

2008        201,538  

       

101,911   $ 6,990,950,144   $      34,688  7.9% 

 

           8,051  

2009        202,807  

       

102,471   $ 6,959,119,398   $      34,314  12.7% 

 

         13,014  

2010        203,206  

       

102,524   $ 6,814,496,000   $      33,494  12.6% 

 

         12,918  

2011        203,955  

       

102,466   $ 7,087,194,000   $      34,602  11.8% 

 

         12,091  

2012        204,645  

       

102,899   N/A   N/A  10.7% 

 

         11,010  

2013        206,310  

       

102,899   N/A   N/A  10.6% 

 

         10,907  

        Josephine County 

      

2004          78,180  

         

34,143   $ 1,951,763,700   $      24,965  8.3% 

 

           2,834  

2005          79,135  

         

34,494   $ 2,062,970,315   $      26,069  7.3% 

 

           2,518  

2006          80,525  

         

35,199   $ 2,238,756,050   $      27,802  6.6% 

 

           2,323  

2007          81,699  

         

34,849   $ 2,375,316,726   $      29,074  7.1% 

 

           2,474  

2008          82,509  

         

34,988   $ 2,441,688,837   $      29,593  9.1% 

 

           3,184  

2009          82,794  

         

35,380   $ 2,482,246,914   $      29,981  14.3% 

 

           5,059  

2010          82,713  

         

38,171   $ 2,396,860,000   $      28,933  14.2% 

 

           5,420  

2011          82,730  

         

35,321   $ 2,498,196,000   $      30,103  12.7% 

 

           4,486  

2012          82,780  

         

34,970   N/A   N/A  11.7% 

 

           4,091  

2013          82,815  

         

34,970   N/A   N/A  11.7% 

 

           4,091  
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        Regional Totals 

  
Averaged Averaged 

  

2004        267,355  

       

132,576   $ 7,646,877,075   $      28,602  7.4% 

 

           9,823  

2005        271,189  

       

133,772   $ 8,071,763,813   $      29,764  6.5% 

 

           8,673  

2006        276,244  

       

135,565   $ 8,843,097,986   $      32,012  5.9% 

 

           8,044  

2007        280,677  

       

136,284   $ 9,256,572,900   $      32,979  6.0% 

 

           8,154  

2008        284,047  

       

136,899   $ 9,432,638,981   $      33,208  8.2% 

 

         11,235  

2009        285,601  

       

137,851   $ 9,441,366,312   $      33,058  13.1% 

 

         18,073  

2010        285,919  

       

140,695   $ 9,211,356,000   $      32,217  13.0% 

 

         18,338  

2011        286,685  

       

137,787   $ 9,585,390,000   $      33,435  12.0% 

 

         16,577  

2012        287,425  

       

137,869   N/A   N/A  11.0% 

 

         15,101  

2013        289,125  

       

137,869   N/A   N/A  10.9% 

 

         14,998  

        (1) Oregon Employment Department and Oregon Office of Economic Analysis 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Population Data 

(unaudited) 

         

 

1950 

Census 

1960 

Census 

1970 

Census 

1980 

Census 

1990 

Census 

2000 

Census 

2010 

Census 

2013 

Estimates 

Jackson County Jurisdictions: 

        

Jackson County (Unincorporated) 

        

26,933  

         

33,056  

         

42,403  

        

57,845  

          

59,831  

          

63,753  

          

62,396  

          

63,910  

Cities: 

        

     Ashland 

          

7,739  

           

9,119  

         

12,342  

        

14,975  

          

16,252  

          

19,522  

          

20,095  

          

20,295  

     Butte Falls 

             

372  

              

384  

              

358  

             

430  

               

252  

               

439  

               

425  

               

430  

     Central Point 

          

1,667  

           

2,289  

           

4,004  

          

6,380  

            

7,512  

          

12,493  

          

17,185  

          

17,315  

     Eagle Point 

             

607  

              

752  

           

1,241  

          

2,794  

            

3,022  

            

4,797  

            

8,470  

            

8,575  

     Gold Hill 

             

619  

              

608  

              

603  

             

895  

               

980  

            

1,073  

            

1,220  

            

1,220  

     Jacksonville 

          

1,193  

           

1,172  

           

1,611  

          

2,015  

            

1,896  

            

2,235  

            

2,785  

            

2,840  

     Medford 

        

17,305  

         

24,425  

         

28,454  

        

39,803  

          

47,021  

          

63,154  

          

74,980  

          

75,920  

     Phoenix 

             

746  

              

769  

           

1,287  

          

2,330  

            

3,239  

            

4,060  

            

4,540  

            

4,570  

     Rogue River 

             

590  

              

520  

              

841  

          

1,320  

            

1,759  

            

1,847  

            

2,135  

            

2,145  

     Shady Cove 

   

          

1,095  

            

1,351  

            

2,307  

            

2,905  

            

2,920  

     Talent 

             

739  

              

868  

           

1,389  

          

2,574  

            

3,274  

            

5,589  

            

6,070  

            

6,170  

            Jackson County Totals 

        

58,510  

         

73,962  

         

94,533  

      

132,456  

        

146,389  

        

181,269  

        

203,206  

        

206,310  

         Josephine County Jurisdictions: 

        

Josephine County (Unincorporated) 

        

18,143  

         

19,551  

         

22,876  

        

42,800  

          

44,020  

          

51,360  

          

46,273  

          

46,055  

Cities: 

        

     Cave Junction 

             

283  

              

248  

              

415  

          

1,023  

            

1,126  

            

1,363  

            

1,885  

            

1,905  

     Grants Pass 

          

8,116  

         

10,118  

         

12,455  

        

15,032  

          

17,503  

          

23,003  

          

34,555  

          

34,855  

            Josephine County Totals 

        

26,542  

         

29,917  

         

35,746  

        

58,855  

          

62,649  

          

75,726  

          

82,713  

          

82,815  

         

            RVCOG Region Totals 

        

85,052  

       

103,879  

       

130,279  

      

191,311  

        

209,038  

        

256,995  

        

285,919  

        

289,125  

         Source: Portland State University, Population Research Center 
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Regional Population 

 Changes From 2010 Census 
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Employer Type of Business County

Number of 

Employees Rank

Percentage of 

Total Regional 

Employment

Asante Health Systems Health Care Both 4,231                 1 3.07%

Harry & David Operations Corp. Agriculture Jackson                   2,000 2 1.45%

Providence Medford Medical 

Center Health Care Jackson 1,271                 3 0.92%

Medford School District Education Jackson 1,018                 4 0.74%

Jackson County Government Jackson 844                    5 0.61%

Boise Building Solutions Wood Products Jackson 750                    6 0.54%

Southern Oregon University Education Jackson 822                    7 0.60%

Timber Products Wood Products Jackson 650                    8 0.47%

Three Rivers School District Education Josephine 639                    9 0.46%

Grants Pass School District Education Josephine 667                    10 0.48%

Josephine County Government Josephine 450                    11 0.33%

Central Point School District Education Jackson 657                    12 0.48%

Masterbrand Cabinets Wood Products Josephine 370                    13 0.27%

Erickson Air-Crane Manufacturing Jackson 561                    14 0.41%

Eagle Point School District Education Jackson 341                    15 0.25%

Amy's Kitchen Organic Frozen Foods Jackson 715                    16 0.52%

Costco Retail Jackson 309                    17 0.22%

Lithia Motors Auto Dealerships Both 800                    18 0.58%

Rogue Community College Education Both 919                    19 0.67%

Three Rivers Community Hospital Health Care Josephine 918                    19 0.67%

Carestream Health Medical Imaging Jackson 342                    20 0.25%

Fire Mountain Gems Manufacturing Josephine 500                    21 0.36%

Oregon Shakespeare Festival Theater Jackson 494                    22 0.36%

Regence BlueCross/BlueShield Medical Claims Processing Jackson 460                    23 0.33%

Cascade Wood Products Manufacturing Jackson 280                    24 0.20%

Rogue Valley Manor Senior Living Jackson 436                    25 0.32%
                21,444 15.55%

Total Regional Employment 137,869             

Source: Southern Oregon Regional Economic Development Inc.

Note: 2008 is the most recent information available.  No Prior information is available.

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Principal Employers

Current Year

(unaudited)
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
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CFDA 

Number

State Contract 

Number

Disbursements 

Recognized

Aging Cluster

Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B Grants for Supportive Services and 

Senior Centers 93.044 136584 392,845$                    

Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B Grants for Supportive Services and 

Senior Centers 93.044 136584 18,648                        

Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 136584 288,752                      

Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part C Nutrition Services * 93.045 136584 443,814                      

Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 136584 133,875                      

          Total Aging Cluster* 1,277,934$                 

Support Services

Special Programs for the Aging Title VII, Chapter 3 Programs for Prevention of Elder 

Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation 93.041 136584 1,977$                        

Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part D Disease Prevention and Health 

Promotion Services 93.043 136584 23,780                        

Special Programs for the Aging Title IV and Title II Discretionary Projects 93.048 All Care 25,000                        

Alzheimer's Disease Demonstration Grants to States* 93.051 130204 126,225                      

National Family Caregiver Support, Title III, Part E 93.052 136584 142,864                      

Empowering Older Adults and Adults with Disabilities through Chronic Disease Self-

Management Education Programs 93.734 141011 3,500                          

          Total Support Services 323,346$                    

Medicaid Cluster

     Medical Assistance Program 93.778 341,065                      

          Total Medicaid Cluster* 341,065$                    

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,942,345$                 

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

     Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 28616 144,268$                    

     Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 26699 172,528                      

          Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 316,796$                    

Metropolitan Transportation Planning

     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 27564 38,369$                      

Total U. S. Department of Transportation 355,165$                    

Supportive Housing Program 14.235 OR0047LOE021205 134,672$                    

    Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 034-12 15,120$                      

2,447,302$                 

Note: The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The 

information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 

Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts 

presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Oregon Department of Human Services -  Senior Services Division

U. S. Department of Transportation

Oregon Department of Transportation

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality

Total Federal Financial Assistance

*Major program as defined by OMB Circular A-133.

U. S. Department of Health and Human Services

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal Agency/Program Title/ Pass Through State Agency 

 

 

 

 

 



 93 

 

 

 



 94 

  



 95 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 96 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
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